Lnited States SDenate

January 17, 2018

VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION

The Honorable Christopher A. Wray
Director

Federal Bureau of Investigation

935 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20535

Dear Director Wray:

The FBI seems to have given contradictory statements to the Senate Judiciary Committee and a
federal judge regarding the scope of the Clinton email investigation, appearing to tell the court the
scope was narrower than what it described to the Judiciary Committee. On September 13, 2017, E.W.
Priestap, the Assistant Director of the FBI’s Counterintelligence Division, submitted a sworn
declaration under penalty of perjury in two cases in the United States District Court for the District of
Columbia.! That sworn declaration attests that the FBI’s Clinton Server Investigation was:

limited in scope to determining: 1) whether classified information was transmitted or
stored on unclassified systems in violation of federal statutes; and 2) whether
classified information was compromised by unauthorized individuals, to include
foreign governments or intelligence services, via cyber intrusion or other means. The
scope of the FBI’s investigation was further limited to former Secretary Clinton’s tenure
at the Department of State (January 21, 2009 to February 01, 2013). ... In addition, the FBI
also utilized legal process, to include grand jury subpoenas, to obtain additional
repositories of e-mail. The FBI’s use of legal process was limited due to the scope of
the investigation[.]?

! Amended Supplemental Declaration of E.W. Priestap, Federal Bureau of Investigation (Sept. 13, 2017) filed in both
Judicial Watch, Inc. v. Tillerson, 15-cv-0785, and Cause of Action Institute v. Tillerson, 15-cv-1068; available at:
http://www.politico.com/f/?id=0000015e-7d5e-dad5-a77f-7dff70500001 and attached to this letter.

2 1d. (emphasis added). The declaration later similarly states that “the FBI’s investigation was limited and focused on any
potential unauthorized transmission and storage of classified information on the person email server during Clinton’s tenure
as Secretary of State (January 21, 2009 to February 1, 2013). As a result of the limitation, the responsive period the FBI had
the legal authority to obtain [emails from Cingular and AT&T prior to her conversion to the clintonemail.com address] was
from the period of January 21, 2009 through March 18, 2009.” The declaration at one point references “the FBI’s national
security investigation” of Secretary Clinton’s email server, but the declaration elsewhere refers to it as “the Clinton Server
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However, in multiple letters to the FBI in 2016 | raised concerns about whether the FBI’s
investigation was improperly narrow, focusing only on issues related to classified information, and not
considering the alienation or destruction of federal records, whether classified or not, which is a crime
under 18 U.S.C. § 2071.3 | asked whether the FBI was being denied legal processes due to an
improperly narrow scope of the investigation. The FBI’s response letters to the Committee addressing
these concerns stated:

Our investigation looked at whether there was evidence that classified information was
improperly stored or transmitted on Secretary Clinton’s private email system, in violation
of a federal statute (18 U.S.C. § 793) that makes it a felony to mishandle classified
information either intentionally or in a grossly negligent way, or another statute (18 U.S.C.
§ 1924) that makes it a misdemeanor to knowingly remove classified information from
appropriate systems or storage facilities. We also considered a statute (18 U.S.C. § 2071)
making it illegal to willfully and unlawfully conceal, remove, or destroy a federal
record. Ultimately, the FBI did not recommend prosecution based on an assessment of
the facts and a review of how these statutes have been charged in the past.*

So, which is it? Did the scope of the FBI’s Clinton email investigation include examining whether
Secretary Clinton and her associates violated 18 U.S.C. § 2071, or didn’t it?

Was the deletion by Secretary Clinton’s associates of thousands of emails she sent and received
as Secretary of State—deletions that occurred long after she left the State Department—not within the
authorized scope of the investigation? Was the FBI able to use the legal processes mentioned above to
investigate this, or were those options precluded due to the artificially limited scope of the
investigation? If the investigation did include this issue, then the declaration to the court about its
scope does not appear to be accurate. If the investigation did not include this, then the letters to the
Judiciary Committee about its scope do not appear to be accurate.

It’s understandable that national security concerns would be the first priority in an FBI
investigation, but they shouldn’t be the only priority. The concealment and destruction of federal
records has important implications for transparency, Inspector General and Congressional oversight,
and Freedom of Information Act compliance. It is a crime for a reason.

Investigation” and “the FBI’s full investigation.” So, there is no reason to believe that the reference to the “national security
investigation” of the Clinton server means there was a separate server investigation regarding the alienation and destruction
of federal records that was somehow not addressed by the declaration.

3 Letter from Chairman Grassley to Director Comey (May 17, 2016), available at
https://www.judiciary.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/2016-05-17%20CEG%20t0%20FBI1%20
(Clinton%20Investigation%20Special%20Counsel).pdf; Letter from Chairman Grassley to Director Comey (Nov. 3, 2016),
available at https://www.judiciary.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/2016-11-
03%20CEG%20t0%20FB1%20(Clinton%20Investigation%20Scope%20L imitation).pdf.

4 Letter from Acting Assistant Director Herring to Chairman Grassley (Aug. 16, 2016), available at
https://www.judiciary.senate.gov/imo/media/doc/2016-08-
16%20FB1%20t0%20CEG%20(Clinton%20Investigation%20Special%20Counsel%20+%20Clinton%20Investigation%20T
ransparency%20Response)%20(002).pdf; see Letter from Assistant Director Brower to Chairman Grassley (June 2, 2017).
While these letters from the FBI to the Committee were not sworn statements subject to penalty of perjury, it is nonetheless
a crime under 18 U.S.C. § 1001 to make any materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in the
course of a Congressional investigation.
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If the scope the FBI described to the court is correct, it appears the FBI did not actually
investigate Secretary Clinton’s removal and concealment of thousands of government records. Nor did
it seriously examine her associates’ deletion of thousands of emails in apparent violation of this statute.
Especially given the recent revelation that former Director Comey had already begun drafting a
statement exonerating Secretary Clinton long before key interviews occurred, these contradictory FBI
statements need further explanation. Indeed, Mr. Comey’s public statement in July of 2016 claimed
that the FBI had looked into this issue, and he exonerated those involved. However, the actual
interview summaries the FBI released do not suggest there was a substantive inquiry, despite facts
suggesting there should have been. Now the court filings seem to imply that legal processes to probe it
were not made available because the issue was outside this narrowly-defined scope.

In order for the Committee to understand the contradictory descriptions of the scope of the
Clinton email investigation that the FBI has provided it and federal courts, please provide an
explanation of how the FBI came to make two different assertions about the scope of the investigation,
as well as a full and accurate explanation of the investigation’s actual scope, by January 31, 2018.
Thank you for your prompt attention to this important matter. If you have any questions, please
contact Patrick Davis of my Committee staff at (202) 224-5225.

Sincerely,

oty

Charles E. Grassley
Chairman
Committee on the Judiciary

cc: The Honorable Dianne Feinstein
Ranking Member
Committee on the Judiciary

The Honorable Michael E. Horowitz
Inspector General
U.S. Department of Justice
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

JUDICIAL WATCH, INC.,

Plaintiff,
V. Civil Action No. 15-cv-0785

REX TILLERSON, in his official capacity as
Secretary of State, ‘

Defendant.

CAUSE OF ACTION INSTITUTE,
Plaintiff,

V. Civil Action No. 15-cv-1068

REX TILLERSON, in his official capacity as
Secretary of State, and DAVID S. FERRIERO,
in his official capacity as Archivist of the
United States,

Defendants.
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AMENDED SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION OF E. W. PRIESTAP
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

I, E.W. Priestap, hereby declare and say:

1. I have been a Special Agent with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) for
eighteen (18) years. I was assigned to the Counterintelligence Division at FBI Headquarters as
the Assistant Director in December 2015. Before then, I served as the Deputy Assistant Director
of the Intelligence Operations Branch in the Directorate of Intelligence at FBI Headquarters.

Prior to that, I was the Special Agent in Charge of the Counterintelligence Division in the New
1
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York Field Office in 2013, where I supported counterterrorism and counterintelligence
operations since 2006 as a Supervisory Special Agent.

2. On July 10, 2015, the FBI initiated a full investigation based upon a referral from
the US Intelligence Community Inspector General (ICIG), submitted in accordance with Section
811(c) of the Intelligence Authorization Act of 1995 and dated July 06, 2015, regarding the
potential unauthorized transmission and storage of classified information on the personal e-mail
server of former Secretary of State Hillary Clinton (Clinton). In my capacity as the Assistant
Director assigned to counterintelligence and counterespionage matters, I supervised the Clinton
Server Investigation. I make this supplemental declaration to provide the Court with additional
background information regarding investigative efforts taken to obtain repositories of e-mail
which would assist the FBI in investigating the potential unauthorized transmission and storage
of classified information. The information stated herein is based on my personal knowledge, my
review and consideration of documents and information available to me in my official capacity,
and information furnished to me by Special Agents and other employees of the FBI.

SCOPE OF THE FBI’S INVESTIGATION

3. As discussed above, the FBI’s full investigation was predicated upon a referral
from the ICIG notifying the FBI of the potential unauthorized transmission and storage of
classified information on the personal e-mail server of former Secretary Clinton. Based upon the
ICIG’s referral, the FBI’s national security investigation was limited in scope to determining: 1)
whether classified information was transmitted or stored on unclassified systems in violation of
federal statutes; and 2) whether classified information was compromised by unauthorized

individuals, to include foreign governments or intelligence services, via cyber intrusion or other
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means. The scope of the FBI’s investigation was further limited to former Secretary Clinton’s
tenure at the Department of State (January 21, 2009 to February 01, 2013).

4. Through the course of the investigation, the FBI sought to obtain all identified e-
mail communications that were transmitted or stored upon former Secretary Clinton’s private e-
mail servers. These investigative efforts consisted of obtaining e-mail repositories through
consent of former Secretary Clinton, her representatives, former members of her staff, the State
Department, and numerous other government agencies with which the Secretary communicated.
In the course of its investigation, the FBI also interviewed individuals who had the most frequent
apparently work-related communications with Secretary Clinton and obtained additional e-mail
correspondence between some of those individuals and Secretary Clinton during her tenure, most
of which were copies already collected.

5. In addition, the FBI also utilized legal process, to include grand jury subpoenas, to
obtain additional repositories of e-mail. The FBI’s use of legal process was limited due to the
scope of the investigation and the need to establish that sufficient probable cause existed to
believe classified e-mails resided within any identified e-mail account, computer, cellular or
wireless mobile device, or other electronic device of investigative interest in order to obtain any
search warrant.

6. As discussed in my first declaration, the FBI's investigation identified that former
Secretary Clinton utilized two e-mail addresses — hr15@mycingular.blackberry.net and
hr15@att.blackberry.net — prior to her conversion to the hdr22@clintonemail.com address on
March 18, 2009. Although this time period was of particular interest to the FBI’s investigative
efforts in order to understand the rationale for establishing a private e-mail server, the FBI’s

investigation was limited and focused on any potential unauthorized transmission and storage of

3
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classified information on the personal e-mail server during Clinton’s tenure as Secretary of State
(January 21, 2009 to February 01, 2013). Asi a result of the limitation, the responsive period the
FBI had the legal authority to obtain the e-mails referred by the Plaintiff as the “BlackBerry e-
mails” was from the period of January 21, 2009 through March 18, 2009.

7. During the course of the FBI’s investigation, limited e-mail communications
during the period of January 21, 2009 through March 18, 2009 for the two e-mail accounts in
question were obtained and have since been turned over to the Department of State for agency
record determination. The FBI utilized numerous investigative methods to obtain any remaining
BlackBerry e-mails from January 21, 2009 through March 18, 2009, to include primarily seeking
consensual access to any e-mail repositories and obtaining personal electronic devices used by
former Secretary Clinton which may have contained relevant e-mails. In addition, the FBI
utilized Grand Jury subpoenas seeking to confirm whether e-mail communication data from the
service providers that facilitated former Secretary Clinton’s access to e-mail during her tenure
was still maintained.

8. Specifically, the FBI served Grand Jury subpoenas on Research in Motion
Limited (RIM), the maker of BlackBerry electronic devices; Cingular Wireless and its successor
AT&T Wireless, both of which provided mobile phone service and therefore data access; and
another service provider, which at the time provided the e-mail service utilized by former
Secretary Clinton. Consistent with its normal practice when seeking e-mail data and with 18
U.S.C. §2703, the FBI first requested “customer or subscriber account information for any
account associated with hr15@att.blackberry.net and hr15@mycingular.blackberry.net” from all

service providers.
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9. The information sought consisted generally of electronic communications
transaction information (i.e., to/from/headers/subject lines of e-mails) but no content. Consistent
with 18 U.S.C. § 2703, the FBI cannot request content via a grand jury subpoena, and would
instead have had to establish probable cause to obtain any search warrant.

10.  Ineach instance, all four service providers responded to the FBI that they had
maintained accounts associated with those two addresses during the period of interest, but
confirmed that electronic communications transaction information for the accounts was no
longer retained by the respective companies and, therefore, the service providers were unable to
produce additional information to the FBI for either account. This result is consistent with e-
mail accounts aésociated with BlackBerries, as my understanding is that the BlackBerry devices
at the time “pulled” information off servers and maintained it on the devicei rather than on a
separate or “cloud” server. The FBI reissued the Grand Jury subpoenas to confirm these
responses and contacted the service providers to further discuss. However, again, the service
providers confirmed that no data was stored relating to these the accounts, and therefore, no
electronic communications transaction information content would be available.

11.  Ininstances whe;e the FBI discovered evidence of the potential unauthorized
transmission of classified information from the personal e-mail servers to private third party e-
mail accounts of individuals with whom Secretary Clinton corresponded and could establish
sufficient probable cause, the FBI sought additional legal process, to include grand jury
subpoenas, in order to obtain additional e-mails relevant to the FBI's investigation.

CONCLUSION

12. It is my opinion that the FBI undertook all reasonable and comprehensive efforts

to recover e-mail communications relevant to its investigation of the potential unauthorized

5
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transmission and storage of classified information on the personal e-mail server of former
Secretary Clinton. The FBI sought all potentially work-related e-mails from the former
Secretary’s tenure and then provided relevant e-mails for classification reviews to the appropriate
U.S. Government agencies.  In addition to the records identified above and associated with the
“BlackBerry e-mails,” as of July 2016, the FBI recovered several thousand unique work-related
and personal e-mails from Clinton’s tenure associated with the hdr22@clintone-mail.com e-mail
address that were not provided by Williams & Connolly as part of Clinton’s production to the
Department of State. The FBI has since turned over all of these e—mailshand other documents to
the Department of State for agency record determination.! In connection with an unrelated
pending investigation, the FBI learned of the existence of e-mails that appeared pertinent to the
Clinton investigation and took appropriate steps to allow investigators to review those e-mails.
Investigative activities undertaken in October 2016 with respect to those e-mails resulted in
additional e-mails being discovered which may be potentially work-related, which were
primarily associated with the clintonemail.com domain. The FBI provided these e-mails to the
Department of State for agency record determination on June 15, 2017, which concluded the
FBI’s transfer of potential agency records to the Department of State. It is my opinion that there
were no further steps that could have been reasonably undertaken by the FBI that would have
recovered additional Clinton work-related e-mails.

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true

and correct, and that Exhibit A attached hereto is a true and correct copy.

! The FBI did not and could not make assessments of whether these e-mails were Department of State records under
the Federal Records Act.

6



Case 1:15-cv-00785-JEB Document 52-1 Filed 09/13/17 Page 7 of 7

Executed this | 2 day of September, 2017.

: A -
E W, (ne (2
E. W. Priestap Q

Assistant Director
Counterintelligence Division
Federal Bureau of Investigation
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